## Far East Area Commission Bylaws

These Bylaws establish the procedure under which the Far East Area Commission shall execute those duties and functions set forth in and with authority granted under Chapters 3109 and 3111 of the Columbus City Codes (herein abbreviated as C.C.)

#### Article I. Name

The name of this organization shall be the Far East Area Commission, herein referred to as the "Commission".

#### Article II. Area

The boundaries of the Commission: to the north, City of Columbus city limits, to the east City of Columbus city limits, to the south, Centerline of the Conrail Railroad and to the west, Centerline of Big Walnut Creek. The Commission serves the incorporated areas of the City of Columbus, and strives to maintain an effective working relationship with the jurisdictions that fall within the Commission's boundaries which include: Franklin County and Fairfield County.

# Article III. Purpose

- 1. The purpose of this Commission shall be to afford additional voluntary citizen participation in decision making in an advisory capacity to the City Administration and City Council and to facilitate communication, understanding, and cooperation between neighborhood groups, city officials, and developers. The Commission shall:
  - A. In the interests of local planning for local needs, identify and study problems and requirements of the Commission Area in order to:
    - 1. Create plans and policies, which will serve as guidelines for future developments of the Area:
    - 2. Bring the problems and needs of the Area to the attention of appropriate government agencies or residents; and 3. Recommend solutions or legislation.
  - B. Air and promote communication within the Commission Area and between it and the rest of the City by means of:
    - 1. Regular and special meetings of the Commission which are open to the public;
    - 2. Public hearings on problems, issues or proposals affecting the area;
    - 3. Public forums and surveys to provide an opportunity for Area residents, businesses and organizations, institutions, and government.

Chair Initial	Secretary Initial

- 4. Initiating proposals and supporting those introduced by individual citizens or area organizations, which will enhance the quality of life enjoyed by area residents and preserve the unique residential and commercial mix of the Area; and
- 5. Promoting and encouraging businesses whose functions, methods of operation, architectural appearance, and locations are consistent with the character and requirement of the Area.
- C. Initiate, review, and recommend criteria and programs for the preservation, development and enhancement of the Commission Area, including. But not limited to, parks, recreation areas, sidewalks, street, and traffic, by means of:
  - 1. Reviewing the proposed Capital Improvements Budget and proposing new items and changes relating to the Area;
  - 2. Making recommendations for restoration and preservation of the historical elements within the Area; and
  - 3. Receiving and reviewing for recommendation, prior to the adoption by governmental bodies, any new or revised comprehensive plan affecting the Area.
- D. Recommend priorities for and review government services and operation of the various government departments in the Commission Area by means of:
  - 1. Requesting and receiving from departments or agencies periodic reports concerning governmental services in the Area;
  - 2. Meeting with administrative heads of any department or agency, or any of their subordinates, to obtain additional information deemed necessary for the Commission to fulfill its functions.
  - 3. Requesting and receiving from departments or agencies, prior to implementation, full reports on any proposed changes;
  - 4. Reviewing and evaluating pending legislation substantially affecting the Area prior to its consideration by Council; and
  - 5. Review and comment on zoning issues and demolitions presented to the Commission.
- E. Recommend persons from Commission Area for nomination to membership on City boards and commission, which make decisions or recommendations affecting the Commission Area.
- 2. The Commission shall not endorse any candidate for public office.

# Article IV. Membership

- 1. Appointment. All Commissioners shall be appointed by the Mayor of the City of Columbus in accordance with C.C. 3109. The Secretary shall notify the Department of Neighborhoods of all nominations, elections, and vacancies within ten days (10) of such action.
  - A. Should the Mayor neither approve nor disapprove the action within thirty (30) days of notifications, the action shall be deemed approval until notice from the Mayor as specified in C.C. 3109.

	Chair Initial	Secretary Initial
--	---------------	-------------------

- B. A copy of each notice shall be sent to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.
- 2. Members. The Commission shall consist of eleven (11) members. Each member shall either reside, work, including affiliation with nonprofits, or own property in the Commission Area, and serve without compensation. There shall be no more than 2 members elected from any given district. Those members outside of the Commission Area are limited to no more than one-third (1/3) of the membership.
  - A. Eight (8) Elected **District** Commissioners shall be selected from the Far East Area. The eight (8) **District** Commissioners shall be selected in accordance with the selection rules adopted by the Far East Area Commission. Each elected **District** Commissioner must be a resident in the City of Columbus.
  - B. Three (3) At-Large Commissioners, shall be nominated by the Commission. The three (3) individuals nominated by the Commission may be from, but not limited to, the following: one (1) official from Far East City Schools; one (1) representative of the Far East clergy; and one (1) from a Far East Area Business Association or Non Profit.
  - C. The Commission must maintain (2/3rds) of the members to be residents of the Far East boundaries.
  - D. All Commission and Committee members must adhere to all bylaws and all rules/regulations/guidelines/policies, established by the Far East Area Commission and approved with a majority vote.
- 3. Terms. The term of membership of elected officials shall be three (3) years. All terms shall expire during the annual meeting; however, a member may continue to serve beyond term expiration until a successor is appointed. Terms shall be staggered so as to maintain continuity of experienced representation. Term of at-large commissioners shall be for three years (3). A letter of resignation shall be forwarded to the chair and posted to the Commission.
- 4. No Commission member, except Commission Chair, shall represent the Commission in its official actions before any other public body or official, except as specifically authorized in writing by the Commission. This shall not be construed as a restriction upon the right of the individual members to represent their own views before public or private bodies, whether in agreement or disagreement with the official action of the Commission.
- 5. Disqualification. Members shall maintain their residence, work, including business or affiliation with nonprofits, property or business in the Commission Area from which they were elected or appointed. Failure of a member to maintain his or her residence, property, business and or affiliation in the Far East Commission Area, shall be deemed a resignation and the Secretary shall notify the Mayor, City Clerk and the Department of Neighborhood.

Chair Initial	Secretary Initial
	Scoretary mitial

- 6. Attendance. The year starts with the annual meeting in January. Members shall, so far as possible, be regular in attendance. A member's absence from three (3) regular meetings in any one (1) year, shall be deemed a resignation from the Commission, unless a petition has been received by the Chairperson of the Commission. The Commission must act upon the petition after it is received at either the next regularly scheduled meeting or the following regularly scheduled meetings. The petition must be made in writing and received by the Chairperson prior to the next regular meeting following the third absence. The petition is to request that some or all of the absences may be excused to extenuating circumstances. The nature of the extenuating circumstances shall be explained. After the second missed meeting, the secretary will remind the member of the attendance policy. After the third missed meeting, the secretary will remind the member about the need to submit a petition to the Chairperson if the member would like to maintain their position. Members shall, so far as possible, inform either the Chairperson or the Secretary, prior to the meeting, when they know they will be absent.
- 7. The Commission shall nominate one or more candidates to fill any vacancy caused by death, disqualification, or other means for the remainder of the unexpired term by letter to the Mayor pursuant to C.C. 3109. A replacement shall be nominated by the remaining members for appointment within thirty (30) days of the declared vacancy to fill the position until the next selections or annual nomination.

## Article V. Officers

- 1. The officers of the Commission shall be: Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer and Zoning Chair. At the January Meeting of the Commission, officers shall be elected by majority vote of the Commission members. Officers shall serve one (1) year, or until a successor is elected. Each officer shall have the right to vote on any question. All officers shall be Commission members.
- 2. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Commission; in consultation with other Commission members, appoint standing and special committees of the Commission; serve as an ex-officio member of all committees; coordinate the actions of officer and committee chairperson; and perform other duties associated with the office as required.
- 3. The Vice-Chairperson shall assist the Chairperson; perform all the duties of the Chairperson in his or her absence, or at the request of the Chairperson; and perform other such duties as may be assigned by the Commission.
- 4. The Secretary shall call and record roll; remind a member of his or her absences per Article IV, section 6; record and maintain accurate voting records and meeting summaries which shall be open to public examination; maintain such other records as the Commission may direct; notify the Department of Neighborhoods of any vacancy;

Chair Initial	Secretary Initial

perform related duties as may be assigned by the Commission; and in the absence of both the Chairperson and the Vice- Chairperson, call the meeting to order and preside.

- 5. The Treasurer shall receive all funds and disburse all funds with the Commission's approval. The Commission shall provide for a reconciliation of the financial records of the accounts prior to each annual meeting.
- 6. A vacancy in the office of the Chairperson shall be filled by the Vice-Chairperson. A vacancy in any other position shall be filled in the same manner as the original selection.

# Article VI. Meeting

Chair Initial

- 1. Regular meetings of the Commission shall be held every month on the first Tuesday at 6:45 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. unless otherwise directed by the Chair person in sufficient time to notify constituents and the City Administration of such change. Each meeting shall be held in the Commission Area unless suitable facilities are not available in which they may seek suitable facilities contiguous to the Commission Area in an appropriate, large room convenient for members and the public chosen by the Commission as its regular meeting place, unless otherwise specified at least fifteen (15) days prior to the meeting. Notice of the meeting shall be made available to the local Neighborhood Pride Center prior to changing meeting times or location.
- 2. The annual meeting shall be the first regular meeting in January at which time newly elected members will be seated.
- 3. Special meetings may be called by Officers, the Chairperson, or by majority of the members in a regular or special meeting with written notification to the chairperson. The meeting's purpose, date, time, and location shall be stated when the meeting is called. No business will be considered at a special meeting unless it was stated when the meeting was called. Except in cases of emergency, three (3) days notice shall be given for a special meeting.
- 4. All meetings shall be open to the public, and notice shall be made available to the local Neighborhood Pride Center.
- 5. Quorum: A majority of the Commission members shall constitute a quorum for conducting business.

6.	Voting: A majority of the Commission members present and voting shall be required to
	approve any action. A tie vote is disapproval. The Chairperson shall state each issue in
	a positive form such as "The question before the Commission is: Shall the application
	(request approval) for be approved?"

2	00

Secretary Initial

7. The Order of Business can be determined by the Chair. A suggested format is:

- 1. Pledge of Allegiance
- 2. Roll Call
- 3. Zoning
- 4. Invited Guests
- **5.** Routine Business
- 6. New Business
  - A. Reports
  - B. Announcements
- 7. Old Business
- 8. Adjournment
- 8. The Chairperson shall recognize members of the public who wish to address the Commission concerning issues under discussion. The Chairperson shall uniformly limit debate to an equal amount of time for each side of the issue. Time limits may be set by the Commission. When appropriate, further action on the issue may be deferred to the next Commission meeting.
- 9. Dissenting or non-concurring reports may be filed with Secretary by any Commission member and shall be attached to the minutes
  - 10. Individual citizens or Commissioners may be asked to research a specific topic and report findings to the Commission.

#### Article VII. Committees

- 1. The Chairperson shall appoint Commission members to standing committees giving due consideration to their individual preferences and subject to approval by a majority vote of the Commission members.
- 2. The Chairperson may appoint non-members to Commission committees subject to approval by a majority vote of the Commission members. Non-member appointed shall have full voting privileges in all proceedings of the committee to which they are appointed. The number of non-members on any committee shall not exceed the number of Commission members appointed.
- 3. Committee members shall serve at the pleasure of the Chairperson and their appointments shall expire at the next annual meeting.
- 4. The Chairperson shall be an ex-officio member of all committees, except the Nominating Committee.

Chair Initial	Secretary Initial

- 5. After appointments are approved, the members of each committee shall select a Committee Chairperson from among the Commission members appointed to the committee.
- 6. Committees will be formed as needed.
- 7. Notice of all committee meetings and copies of all committee correspondence shall be filed with the Secretary and the Chairperson of the Commission. Committee findings which propose action or resolution shall be submitted at a regular meeting of the Commission for consideration.

## Article VIII. Elections

- 1. The Elections Board shall consist of a minimum of three (3) Commission Area residents appointed by the Chairperson with the approval of the Commission at the last regular meeting in August of each year. No individual running election night activities can be connected in any way with any candidate appearing on the ballot for the Commission.
- 2. The Board shall appoint any necessary officers; provide for printing and distributing necessary for such as, but not limited to, petitions, ballots and tallies; receive petitions; certify persons who have qualified as candidates as candidates. Locate polling places, conduct the election; tally the votes; hear and decide complaints concerning the election or campaign; and certify the winning candidates to the Commission pursuant to C.C. 3109 and the Selection Procedure, including all activities incidental thereto.
- 3. Candidates for selection shall not be members of the Elections Board or polling staffs in year or years in which their names appear on the ballot.
- 4. Elections shall be by secret ballot and determined by plurality of vote if three (3) or more candidates vie for a single position, otherwise a majority of votes cast shall elect. Any person eighteen (18) years of age or older may be an elector. Electors need not be registered with the Franklin County Board of Elections or Fairfield County Board of Elections. Thereafter, each election shall be conducted by the Elections Board at the next annual meeting-in September. Members shall take office at the January Meeting
- 5. The Election Board shall adopt Election Rules for governing the elections by majority vote of its members provided such rules shall conform with these Bylaws and Selection Procedure. Such rules shall not be changed during the ninety (90) days before an election nor thirty (30) days after an election. The adoption of amendment of such Rules shall be presented to the Commission at the beginning of a regular meeting. Should the Commission not disapprove of them prior to adjournment, such Rules take effect. The Commission may amend the Election Rules without action by the Elections Board in the same manner as an amendment of these Bylaws.

Chair Initial	Secretary Initial
---------------	-------------------

# Article IX. Parliamentary Authority

Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern in all cases to which they are applicable and not inconsistent with these Bylaws and any special rules of order the Commission may adopt.

# Article X. Amendments of Bylaws

These Bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the Commission by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Commission Members provided that the amendment was submitted in writing at the previous regular meeting. The Secretary shall file any approved amendment immediately after its adoption with the City Clerk for publication in the City Bulletin. Such amendment shall take effect ten (10) days after such publication per C.C. 121.05.

## Article XI. Districts

#### District I Boundaries:

North: City of Columbus City Limits East: City of Columbus City Limits South: City of Columbus City Limits West: Center Line of Outerbelt Street

## District II Boundaries:

North: City of Columbus City Limits East: Center Line of Outerbelt St/City of

Columbus City Limits

South: Center Line of East Main Street West: Center Line of the Big Walnut Creek

#### District III Boundaries:

North: Center Line of East Main Street East: City of Columbus City Limits/Center

Line of Brice/Gender Rd

South: Center Line of the Conrail Railway West: Center Line of the Big Walnut Creek

Chair Initial	Secretary Initial	
---------------	-------------------	--

# District IV Boundaries:

North: City of Columbus City Limits East: City of Columbus City Limits South: Center Line of the Conrail Railway West: Center Line of Brice/Gender Rd



Amended Bylaws as adopted this 4th day of May, 2021;

Far East Area Commission Chair
Jennifer Chamberlain
Far East Area Commission Secretary  Gene Tyree
05/04/21